
For requests for further information 
Contact:  Paul Mountford 
Tel: 01270 686472 
E-Mail: paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 

Community Governance Review Sub-
Committee 

 
Agenda 

 

Date: Tuesday, 26th July, 2011 
Time: 9.30 am 
Venue: West Committee Room  - Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, 

Crewe, CW1 2BJ 
 
 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Appointment of Chairman   
 
2. Appointment of Vice Chairman   
 
3. Apologies for Absence   
 
4. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal 

and/or prejudicial interests in any item on the agenda. 
 

5. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is 
allocated for members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant 
to the work of the meeting. Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 
minutes but the Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time 
allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where there are a number of 
speakers. Members of the public are not required to give notice to use this facility. 
However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours’ notice is encouraged. 
 

Public Document Pack



  
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at 
least three clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question 
with that notice. This will enable an informed answer to be given. 
 

6. Briefing Paper - Crewe Community Governance Review  (Pages 1 - 12) 
 
 The Sub-Committee is asked to discuss the briefing paper which sets out the 

proposed procedure for conducting the review, having regard to statutory 
guidance and criteria. 
 
 

 
 
THERE ARE NO PART 2 ITEMS 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Community Governance Review Sub Committee 
 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
26 July 2011 

Report of: Registration Service and Business Manager 
Briefing Paper: Crewe Community Governance Review 
  
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1 This paper is intended as an initial briefing paper for the Sub Committee to 

provide Members with an outline of the process to be followed in conducting 
this Community Governance Review. It is based on the statutory guidance in 
respect of the process for creating a new local council ‘Guidance on 
Community Governance Reviews’ issued by the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG) and the Electoral Commission. Hard copies of 
the Guidance will be printed and made available for members of the Sub-
Committee at the meeting.  

 
2 Background 
 
2.1 At the Council meeting held on 14th October 2010, consideration was given to 

the following Notice of Motion as submitted by Cllr D Flude: 
 

“Following the resolution of this Council on 25th January 2010 when it was 
resolved’ –  

 
‘To accept the vote from the people of Crewe to reject a Town Council for 
Crewe at this time’ – 

 
in the light of the passage of time and the proposed Special Expenses 
Community Charge for the Town Crewe; 

 
will this Council now return to the matters considered on the 25th January and 
ask the Constitution Committee to undertake a further Community 
Governance Review for Crewe”. 

 
2.2     Having considered the above notice of motion, the Council resolved  

“that the motion stands referred to the Constitution Committee for 
consideration”.  

 
2.3  The Constitution Committee, following its meeting on 18th November 2010, 

submitted a  report to Council on 16th December 2010 which outlined the legal 
implications and risks of the Motion for the Council. The report also considered 
the implications of the Wilmslow Community Governance Review, that was 
ongoing at that time, but which has now been completed (in February 2011).  It 
recommended that only one review be conducted at a time for the most efficient 
use of resources and to allow for experience to be gained.  

Agenda Item 6Page 1



 
2.4 Council recommended that further consideration of the subject matter of the  

Motion be deferred until after the May 2011 elections, after which time the 
Council be asked to urgently consider undertaking a holistic Borough-wide 
review of community governance arrangements in Cheshire East.  

 
2.5 At the Council meeting held on 16th December 2010, the above 

recommendation was agreed and the decision made to defer further 
consideration until after the May 2011 elections. 

 
2.6    At a meeting of the Constitution Committee on 2nd June 2011, a motion was 

moved to conduct a borough-wide review of community governance 
arrangements in order of the priority listed below: 

 
a. A review of the unparished areas of Crewe; in accordance with the Notice of 

Motion to Council on 14 October 2010 
 
b. A review of the unparished areas of Macclesfield; in accordance with the 

representations made by the Macclesfield Civic Society 
 
c.  A review of parishes in the Borough, with particular focus on areas where 

there is evidence that parish councils are not fully functional or not operating 
effectively; due to a lack of parish councillors being elected; or where very 
small parishes exist which may benefit from a grouping arrangement to 
facilitate the localism agenda 

 
2.6    A Sub-Committee was appointed by the Constitution Committee for the 

purposes of the Crewe Community Governance Review, with representation by 
local Members as appropriate. 

 
3 Procedure 
 
3.1  Since February 2008 the decision-making power about matters such as the 

creation of parishes and their electoral arrangements has been devolved from 
the Secretary of State and the Electoral Commission to principal Councils such 
as Cheshire East.  

 
3.2  Cheshire East Council can decide whether to give effect to the 

recommendations made arising from the Community Governance Review 
provided it takes the views of local people into account.  

 
3.3 This process will follow several phases which are outlined below: 

• Determine the viable options for community governance in the area 
under review 

• Draw up a consultation plan for consulting on these options 
• Stage 1 consultation on options 
• Evaluation and analysis of responses 
• Draft recommendations for the Constitution Committee to consider for 

recommendation to Council 
• Draft proposal advertised 
• Stage 2 consultation on the draft proposal 
• Council decides outcome of the review process 

Page 2



 
3.4 A draft project plan is included in this report as Appendix 1. This is intended to 

be a initiating document to aid project planning. The time scales will be 
continually reviewed and updated. 

 
3.5 The consultation stages of the review will be critical to the process. As such, 

the Sub-Committee needs to: 
• agree a list of consultees (Appendix 2) 
• agree the methods of consultation to be used 
• agree the timing of the consultation stages 

 
3.6       Other key considerations: 

• The impact of community governance arrangements on community 
cohesion 

• The size, population and boundaries of a local community or parish 
• Parishes should reflect distinctive and recognisable communities of 

interest with their own sense of identity 
• The degree to which the proposals offer a sense of place and identity for 

all residents 
• The ability of the proposed authority to deliver quality services 

economically and efficiently providing users with a democratic voice 
• The degree to which a town or parish council would be viable in terms of 

a unit of local government providing at least some local services that are 
convenient, easy to reach and accessible to local people 

 
3.7 Any views received as part of the consultation process must be taken into 

account.  
 
3.8 The view of the Electoral Commission must be sought on any proposed 

electoral arrangements.  
 
3.9 The intention is that the initial phase of consultation will be based largely on 

written representations received in response to public notices and specific 
invitations. It is suggested that two public meetings are held to give interested 
parties the opportunity to express their views in a public forum, and a postal 
ballot of the electorate be conducted. The Sub-Committee will need to consider 
the wording and the format of the ballot paper. It is recommended that the 
Cheshire East website be used to encourage feedback online, and as the main 
mechanism for availability of information.  

 
3.10 It is recommended that an explanatory leaflet be prepared and distributed to the     

consultees outlining the details of the review and the options being consulted. 
Examples of the explanatory leaflet and ballot papers used in the past Crewe 
Community Governance Review and the recent Wilmslow Community 
Governance Review will be available at the meeting for the sub-committee to 
consider and adapt as required.  

 
4 Criteria when undertaking a review 
 
4.1     In considering the results of the consultation and formulating recommendations,  

Members will be required to ensure that the community governance within the 
area  under review will be: 

Page 3



• Reflective of the identities and interests of the community in that area 
• Be effective and convenient 

 
4.2 Key considerations for the Sub-Committee to identify if the review meets the 

criteria include: 
• The impact of community governance arrangements on community 

cohesion 
• The size, population and boundaries of local communities or parishes 
• Parishes should reflect distinctive and recognisable communities of 

interest with their own sense of identity 
• The degree to which the proposals offer a sense of place and identify for 

all residents 
• The ability of the proposed authority to deliver quality services 

economically and efficiently whilst providing users with a democratic 
voice 

• The degree to which a town or parish council would be viable in terms of 
a unit of local government providing some local services that are 
convenient and accessible to local people 

 
4.3    The guidance also indicates that as part of the review other viable options 

should be considered to determine if they represent a better option in terms of 
addressing the criteria. Work was completed as part of the last Crewe 
Community Governance Review to gather further information to make an initial 
evaluation of the options below so this should not need to be repeated. 

 
• Area committees: formed as part of the structure of principal Councils, 

often including Councillors. They can be involved in a wide range of 
service provision and fulfil a number of community governance roles. 
Their primary role is to contribute to the shaping of Council services and 
improving local service provision. In Cheshire East, the Local Area 
Partnerships provide a coherent and consistent pattern across the 
borough by coordinating partners in small local areas 

• Neighbourhood management: generally aimed at service delivery 
improvement and implementation at a local level, facilitated by a 
neighbourhood manager rather than advising or making decisions at a 
local level 

• Tenant Management Organisations: largely public/social housing 
focused and estate based 

• Area/Community Forums: mechanisms to give communities a say on 
principal Council matters or local issues and to influence decision-
making. Membership usually consists of those people living or working in 
a specific area 

• Residents’/Tenants’ Associations: usually neighbourhood/estate 
focused, established with or without direct support from the principal 
Council 

• Community Associations: democratic model for local residents and 
community organisations to work together for the benefit of the 
neighbourhood. The principal Council may be represented on the 
management committee  

Page 4



• Multiple Parish Councils: these may best meet the community 
cohesion requirements of the review, and may use natural geographical 
boundaries to form communities 

 
5 Recommendations and decision on the review outcome 
 
5.1    The guidance requires that recommendations must be made with respect to the  
           following: 

• The need to ensure that community governance reflects the identities 
and interests of the community in the area, and is effective and 
convenient 

• Any other arrangements that have been made for the purposes of 
community representation or engagement 

• Any representation received  
• Supported by evidence which demonstrates that the community 

governance arrangements would meet the criteria 
      
6 Electoral Arrangements 
 
6.1 The Review must give consideration to the electoral arrangements that should 

apply in the event that a Parish or Town Council is established. In particular, 
the following must be considered: 
• The ordinary year of election – the first year would be the 2015 Borough 

and Parish Elections 
• Council size – the number of councillors 
• Parish/Town warding – whether the town or parish should be divided into 

wards; the number and boundaries of any such wards; the number of 
councillors per ward; the names of any such wards 

 
7 Background Documents 
 
7.1 The Sub Committee will be provided with the current electorate and an outline 

map showing the area under review. Additional information can be provided to 
assist members as required.  

 
The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writers: 

 
Name:   Lindsey Parton   
Designation:  Registration Services and Business Manager    
Tel No:  01270 686477 
Email Officers  :    Lindsey.parton@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Name:   Natalie Bown   
Designation:  Policy Officer, Performance and Partnerships     
Tel No:  01270 686095 
Email Officers  :    Natalie.bown@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



CREWE COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - PROJECT PLAN                     APPENDIX 1 
      

V1 – 18.7.11  - 1 - 

Task/activity Decision making process Date of Meeting 

Officer Project Team 
Officer 
Responsible 

Community Governance Review Sub Committee - 
1st and 2nd meetings 

26/7/2011 
Mid – August - tbc  

Guidance summary 
Project Plan  
Map of Review Area    
Electorate figures 
 
Options appraisal (As per last Crewe CGR) 
 
Prepare consultation  leaflet  
 
Electoral arrangements - initial views  
size/warding 
  
Consultation – Full list of consultees and 
contact details 
 
2 x Public notices prepared for public 
meetings and for commencement of the 
Review    
 
Arrange  public meetings 
 
Arrange printing for postal ballot 
 

LP/ NB 
  
 
 
 

Consider summary of CGR guidance 
 
Approve terms of reference  
Approve Review Process / project plan 
Agree consultation methods 
Agree list of consultees 
Identify and evaluate options for the review 
Formulate Leaflet to consultees and  electors  
Agree arrangements for public meetings  
Agree and signoff format of ballot paper  

 

Publish Public Notice giving details of public 
meetings 
 

 
LP/NB 
 
  

24/8/2011 
(Two weeks before public 

meetings held) 
 

Public Meetings  
 BR/ LP/ NB 

2 meetings, Council Chamber,   Municipal Buildings, Crewe  – 
Dates / times to be agreed by Sub - Committee  

Wk cmg  12/9/2011 
 

P
age 7



CREWE COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - PROJECT PLAN                     APPENDIX 1 
      

V1 – 18.7.11  - 2 - 

Task/activity Decision making process Date of Meeting 
Publish Public Notices  for 1st stage 
consultation 
 

LP/NB 
  

14/9/2011 
 (Two weeks before consultation 

starts) 
Comments / submissions invited from 
interested parties on Options  (4 week 
consultation period) 
 
Count of ballot ballots returned   
 
  

Consultation Period (stage 1)  
 

30/09/2011 –  28 /10/2011 
 

Collate representations and prepare 
committee report (agenda dispatched on 
31/10/2011)  
 

LP/NB 
 

Community Governance Review Sub Committee -  
3rd meeting 

8/11/2011 (am) – suggested 
date  

All submissions / comments considered and 
evaluated. 
 
Report / draft recommendation prepared for 
consideration by  Constitution Committee 
(agenda dispatched on 9.11.2011) 

 
 
 
 
LP/NB 
 

  

 

  Constitution Committee  17.11.2011 
Preparation of report to Council on draft 
final recommendation (including any 
warding arrangements) 
(agenda dispatched on 6.12.2011) 
 
 

LP/NB 
 

Formulate draft final recommendation to Council 

 

  

Council 
 
 

15/12/2011 
 
 

P
age 8



CREWE COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - PROJECT PLAN                     APPENDIX 1 
      

V1 – 18.7.11  - 3 - 

Task/activity Decision making process Date of Meeting 

 

 Approval of final draft recommendation for consultation 
 
Agree public notice for stage 2 consultation   

Publish Notice  
 
 
 

LP/ NB  
 
 
 

21/12/2011 
Two weeks before consultation 

starts 

Implement Consultation (3 weeks)  
LP/ NB Consultation Period (stage 2)  3/1/2012 – 24/1/2012 

 

  

Community Governance Review Sub-Committee -  
4th meeting wk cmg 6/2/2012  

Preparation of analysis/evaluation of 
consultation outcome 
 
Develop final recommendations – to include 
Implementation Plan, interim arrangements 
and election arrangements 

LP/NB Analysis of consultation outcome 
Formulation of final recommendation and Implementation 
Plan for consideration by Constitution Committee 

 
Preparation of report to Constitution 
Committee detailing final recommendation 
for approval by Council 

LP/NB Approval of final recommendation and Implementation Plan 
for consideration by Council 

 

  SPECIAL MEETING Constitution Committee Mid February 2012  - tbc 
Preparation of final recommendation and 
report to Council 
Implementation arrangements 
Draft Order and associated documents 
including maps 
Implementation Plan including interim 
arrangements 

LP/NB 
 
 
 
 
 
   

P
age 9



CREWE COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - PROJECT PLAN                     APPENDIX 1 
      

V1 – 18.7.11  - 4 - 

Task/activity Decision making process Date of Meeting 
  Final Decision by  COUNCIL MEETING 

Including Approval of reorganisation order and 
Implementation Plan 

23/2/2012 
 
 

Council Publishes Reorganisation Order    
March 2012  

 
Implementation of any changes in electoral 
arrangements  

  
Thereafter  

 
 
Key to Officers:- 
 
LP  -  Lindsey Parton, Registration Service and Business Manager, Legal & Democratic Services   
NB - Natalie Bown, Policy Officer, Performance and Partnerships  
BR - Brian Reed, Democratic and Registration Services Manager 
 
     

P
age 10



Crewe Community Governance Review                         

              APPENDIX 2  
Consultees 
 
Local political parties 
National Association of Local Councils 
Cheshire Association of Local Councils 
Edward Timpson MP 
Nantwich Town Council 
Minshull Vernon and District Parish Council  
Warmingham Parish Council 
Haslington Parish Council 
Crewe Green Parish Council 
Weston and Basford Parish Council 
Rope Parish Council 
Shavington cum Gresty Parish Council 
Wistaston Parish Council 
All Cheshire East Borough Councillors  
Crewe Charter Trustees (collectively) 
Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT 
Mid Cheshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
Cheshire and Wirral Mental Health Trust 
Crewe LAP 
Community Groups : 
 Crewe West Community Group, Webby’s, Frank Webb Avenue, Crewe 
 Wistaston Green Partnership, St Marks Church, Bramall Road, Crewe 
 Marshfield Bank Community Centre, West Street, Crewe. 
 C& N Senior Voices 
 Gresty Community Group 
 Diamonds Over 50 Club – Alexandra Ward 
 Valley CAP 
 Valley Green Project 
 Wishing Well 
 LMR Sports Club 
 Castaway’s Community Shop 
 Christian Concern, Crewe     
    
Neighbourhood Action Groups  (via Cheshire East Community Development 
Team)  
Residents Groups (via Cheshire East Community Development Team)  
Local Schools – Primary, Secondary, Nursery 
Private Day Care Centres 
Education Improvement Partnerships    
Manchester Metropolitan University 
South Cheshire College 
Appropriate voluntary organisations (via Crewe & Nantwich Voluntary Action) 
Cheshire East Third Sector Congress 
South East Cheshire Enterprise Ltd      
          Cont.. 
 
 

Page 11



Crewe Community Governance Review                         

South Cheshire Chamber of Commerce in Crewe 
Local Business Networks - SCOOT, Pub Watch 
Churches Together in Crewe 
Cheshire Interfaith Network 
Crewe Fire Station 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 
Cheshire Police Authority 
Registered Social Landlords (Wulvern and M&D Housing) 
Polish Association and other migration groups  
    
Mrs Pam Minshall 
Secretary  
Crewe Local History Association 
145 Gainsborough Road 
Crewe 
CW2 7PL 
 
 
Mrs Avril Devaney 
Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Trust 
Trust Headquarters 
Countess of Chester Hospital  
Chester 
 
  

Page 12


	Agenda
	6 Briefing Paper - Crewe Community Governance Review
	Project Plan - v1
	Consultees re Crewe Town Council v1


